TOWNSHIP OF WASHINGTON, WARREN COUNTY

Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008

The regular meeting of the Township Committee was Insddiate at the Washington Township
Municipal Building located at 211 Route 31 North, Washington, Nbhe meeting was called to
order at 7:32 p.m. by Mayor David Dempski

SUNSHINE LAW COMPLIANCE- The Mayor noted that this meeting was being held in
compliance with the Open Public Meetings Law of 1975 imash as a notice had been published
in the Star Gazette, transmitted to the Express Tipwested at the municipal building and a copy
is on file in the Clerk’s Office.

This agenda is subject to change by order of the Washifigiwnship Committee and/or during
the scheduled meeting.

ROLL CALL:. Dempski, present; Elbassiouny, present; Muglbresent; Strunk; Present;
Horensky was absent. Michael Lavery, Township Attgrivary Ann O’Neil, Township Clerk,
Pete de Boer, Certified Public Works Manager and Polgef Games Mc Donald were also
present.

SALUTE TO FLAG

The Mayor said they would be changing the agenda, theutellse an executive session held and
there are two public concerns that he wants to gedreo\irst.

PUBLIC CONCERN ONE

The Mayor said he received a call from Raymond Koglanmging some flooding issues on his
property and he referred the matter to the TownshiprA¢toand Township Engineer. Lavery,
Township Attorney, said he received an e-mail fromMlagior with concerns of a resident, as well
as William Gleba, Township Engineer’s reply and hadhia comments to add. Apparently, this
property was purchased approximately 20 years ago and &trtéano flood insurance was
required. The property owner recently attempted to re&fmahe home and it turned out that the
bank requires flood insurance, which would run around $4,000.

Lavery said the allegation was that somehow the Thiwmaust have done something wrong

when they approved the development. He said everysesdéeclosing the title company does a
flood search and then a flood search is given to treoperTheir attorney and title company
should have reviewed that with the purchaser and isagllwhether or not the property is in the
flood zone. Ifitis in flood zone, it will eitheequire flood insurance or say they may be subject to
it. Over the past 8 years there is a statementdsbeen added to that says FEMA updates those
maps periodically and the property owner agrees. Thesalaontracts between the mortgage
company and property owner, not necessarily betwelen aatl buyer. It will say that FEMA
updates the maps and subsequently places the property izdloedyou agree to get flood
insurance.

Lavery said when the property was purchased, flood inseineasn’t required, even if the
property was in flood plain. When they reviewed fitbgy had the approval of the DEP and it
was clear the property was in a flood plain at the.tiffikis present lender is requiring flood
insurance. The Township did nothing wrong, this waseres by DEP and approved. At the
time there should have been a flood search done @raberty when it was purchased. It is
much stricter today than it was 20 years ago because obtious flooding that has occurred in
United States in recent years.

The Mayor said he had reviewed the tax map and the lengesbably FIRM Mapping without
the benefit of information shown on tax map. Thewas created from a subdivision and stream
encroachment flood plain limit lines were establistredugh this area, which indicates that
NJDEP permitting was obtained for the subdivision ofitf® An extensive review was
undertaken and approved by NJDEP, differing from FIRM, wisigiot out of the ordinary, but
would have been the current rules and actual conditiahsnatches of the FIRM. The Mayor
said the Township Engineer could review this to see tigaposition would be, if this is indeed
the case.

Raymond Koch13 Pebble Beach Way, said he needs to discuss ther mtt Township
Attorney and Township Engineer, because many statemrmawts are not quite true. He would
like to show them maps and share information thatalseéiom FEMA and DEP. Koch gave a




history of the purchase of the property. Koch requestadigsgon first to talk with the Township
Engineer to work together to get a new application filal The Mayor said, if the Committee
grants this request, who would be responsible for angaition work? Koch said he just wants
consultation advice, he cannot fill the form out.heT™ayor asked for a motion to allow Koch to
talk to the Township Attorney and Township Engineeraf@eriod not to exceed two hours,
pending the availability of funds. (Engineering Operatingdfise Account). Elbassiouny made the
motion proposed by the Mayor, Mueller seconded.

ROLL CALL: Elbassiouny, yes; Mueller, yes; Strunk, ypgmpski, yes.

The Mayor gave a copy of Koch'’s information to therklto give to Township Engineer and
copy for the files.

PUBLIC CONCERN TWO

The Mayor said a letter had been received from Hawkt@®@evelopers LLC, which is the
company that was developing town homes and condos onaligirt of the development.. The
Mayor read the letter into the record - Dear Honaabhyor Dempski: This letter is to advise
you of our intent to complete the road improvement®fak paver crosswalks, intersections and
island caps for the townhouse parking lots, all as departezlir approved site plan. The
schedule for the completion of this work is attache@toefor your review. If there are any
further questions, please do not hesitate to give mé diregtly. Steve Klenk of our office is
overseeing this project and he is in direct contadt your township consulting engineer.
Sincerely yours, Hawk Point Developers, LLC, Brian3folar, Managing Member.

Steve Klenk, 18 Roy Place, Ramsey, New Jersey saglaheice president of a division of
Pinnacle, not a division that was associated withghrticular project. He has gone over the
plans in detail with Tom Quinn, Engineer for the Towpsfihey are in agreement what the scope
is and what has to be done. The Mayor said the s@&sdals the work will begin November
10, 2008 and be completed December 13, 2008.

The Mayor said that Pinnacle is cooperating in gettigydone. His end goal is to get the road
done so they can be accepted and plowed on a timely Basi®ayor said, as far as funding, the
Township has the cash portion of the bond, which woeldded to offset the costs of this. They
will want to see copies of the invoice and mailed to Rblite 31 North and also weekly status
reports to keep track of the progress and invoices gsthecut. They want to track the
spending. Klenk asked if the cash bond is released contwitbrthe invoicing from the
contractor. The Mayor was not sure about this. tyasaid, as each stage gets completed, then
whatever cash was posted to insure that stage was tethm@erequest is made and the Township
has 45 days to release that. The engineer has to sdmething in writing that states that road
(a) or road (b) is paved and acceptable, then the bondymeould be released for that particular
improvement. Basically, you release it as the wodoise.

Klenk said there is just one line item in the engireeestimate for the pavers, so it not ear marked
for each particular intersection. So, he would worlhhie Township Engineer to come up with
a prorated schedule based on square footage or somethitigatikdt is not itemized right now.
The Mayor said they would work with them and get thenmtbeey as the work is completed.

Strunk said normally on a cash bond the developer hds ttoand the Township continues to

hold that cash fund as an emergency reserve. |s spiscal agreement made to get the work
done? The Mayor said they are past the calling ih@bbnd, that was 2005, they are 3 years
past that. Strunk asked if this was a situation tleatayor finds is comfortable with this
procedure. Lavery said normally what you do is reduas Work is done, but money is retained
to finish the job, if necessary. Lavery said thginal estimates were based on 2001 numbers, so
this must be kept in mind. This can be reviewed wigheihgineer. Strunk agreed a dollar amount
schedule should be worked out, but they should more than esi@ugh cash at the end, so if only
80% got done and they paid out 80% of the bond, 20% is not gopaytfor another contractor
to come in and finish it. The Mayor said to do awfeson this is to let them finish it on their

own. Elbassiouny agreed with this.

Klenk said he would develop a prorated payment schedule, ameelvso as work items are
completed and approved by the engineer, they would wotk@fiayment schedule.

The Mayor asked if there were any questions from thagubl



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 3

George Willan32 Falcon Way, said he understood the term street pakeysare not talking

about grass pavers at this time. He was advised tisah# concrete pavers depicted on the plans.
Willan said he understood the cost is more than wlatailable in cash, so Pinnacle is putting

up some cash to have this job completed. The Mayoitisai is what Brian Stollar referred to

him today, they were responsible for costs abovammeunts, which will exceed that. Willan said

he could easily help in this by notifying residentsaaw/hich streets should be blocked off for this.

Frank Cregan62 Merlin Drive, said he is confused on how the cagjoing to be pay the bills.
Are they using up the bond cash first? The Mayor sailegscomplete the work and pay out of
their own pocket, that money would then be refunded alsahé amount would be reduced.
Cregan asked what happens when the money is used up andjéieeipmot completed and
Pinnacle backs away. The Mayor said he has been dgbatePinnacle would be responsible for
the remainder to finish the project. Cregan said thage promises before. The Mayor said he
gave a copy of the letter from Pinnacle to Georgeawill

Lavery said, the problem is that the project should h&esn completed in 2005, which has not
been completed. So, at this point in time the Townean either work with them and take certain
things on faith or sue them, which would mean nothingldvget done for a year a best. There
are valid points and concerns, but the Committee iggdeirat must be done to get the project
done for the benefit of the residents.

Cregan asked about the rest of the items that haveboeeled. The Mayor said he had talked
with Tom Quinn, Engineer, there are obviously someslotems which should not be a big
expense for Pinnacle to finish. No trees should bhagdanow. Cregan this is alright, as long as it
does not get signed away. The Mayor said they will gQuyn’s Report and all the items will be
complete. Lavery advised that all improvements beare will be inspected and approved by
the Township Engineer.

Efrem Zaret 37 Falcon Way, said there are other street issuearth@n Quinn’s list, will they be
done at the same time? There is a hole in onet stneleparts of the streets are pooling, this is the
time to do that if they have contractors coming ifihe Mayor said that Quinn is not signing off
on the list until the items are complete.

Klenk asked, on the payment of releases from the TawibsHPinnacle which are ear marked for
the contractor, will they be made concurrent of warkyresolutions to pay. Is there going to be
a time delay? The Mayor said a resolution must be passeduce the bond amount and get the
payment. The Township meets the third Tuesday of eaciihm

The Mayor said the Committee would be deviating frometlpenda. He asked for a motion to go
into Executive Session to review matters on the lasel Board and Finance Department. The
Mayor said this would be a private Executive Sessidhe Mayor asked if any of the employees
that had been Rice Noticed

would like to have this heard in private or in the pul#lice Oldford, Land Use Board Secretary,
wanted it heard during public meeting. Lavery said thelpnois, unless everybody else that
was Rice Noticed want to do the same, Oldford would bae®me back next month. Strunk
asked if any member of the Finance Committee wanteebitd in private. After discussion, it was
decided to have all discussion held during the public meeting.

Lavery said to avoid any confusion, he explained wigita Notice was for everyone. If the
Township is going to talk about an employee’s job perfoeathey have to be Rice Noticed,
which gives them the ability to listen to Townshipn@uittee as the performance is discussed.

It is not a hearing, it is not an allegation thataeydid anything wrong. The fact is, any time an
employees’s performance is discussed, they have toveeg&tice Notice.

The Mayor said basically, the reason the employees Riee Noticed, was that there have been
issues, particularly with the Land Use Board Profesisdiging paid in a prompt manner as a
function of available escrow money being in the act®tmpay them. Further, the Land Use
Board Professionals would be the Planner, Land UsedHfagineer and Land Use Board
Attorney, except for some small cases, are paid oes@bw. Escrows are monies that the
applicant pays so their application can get processed.TdWwaship does not pay for the
Township Engineer to review, from a geological standp@agil matters, it is all handled by an
escrow payment the applicant pays. Every few mohisghould be replenishing their accounts.



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 4

So, if the Land Use Board Attorney says a resolutiost be done for approval of application,
they should be checking to see if there is escrow miondaeir account before they bill against
that. Recently there was a problem where theresigagicant outages where there was a great
deal of outstanding payments due to professionals. Thsrbden a lot of transition in the
Finance Department and this has caused some of thigeprob

The Mayor said he created a letter of September 27, 2@68s of trying to come to a closure
of this problem. There is a problem and they want atevsure they fix the problem. This is a
governing body, it is still a business and it should bewttim proper stewardship. In the letter, he
set up a process to insure what the expectations wegems of communication between the
Finance Department and the Land Use Board Secret@asyper the job description, the Land Use
Board Secretary is responsible for maintaining thedes@ccount Balances, working with the
Finance Department and making sure the applicants wereanade when there was an
outstanding balance on their account. Once the Togvgs/es the approval, there is no way to
get the funds back. The Mayor asked the Finance Depdremd Land Use Board Secretary if
they had any questions about expectations and who shodtrgewhat and when. Every
Monday, the Finance Department will be giving the Laisé Board Secretary the escrow
balances, so everyone will know the balances.

The Mayor said some hours may have to be restructured hm make time when people are
working together at the same time. It is important d@amunication is not just paper, its that
everyone is working together and working toward the goalmfing smoothly. There should be
an overlap of hours between the Land Use Board SegmatdrFinance Officer.

Barbara Emery, Finance Officer, said one of the problis there is still money outstanding.
Alice Oldford, Land Use Secretary, has written lettbrg unfortunately there were applications
that had already been approved that they still need nfongyofessionals. She said there is not
enough money up front and they are not replenishing. Sim@yld be asking for more money, so
there is a cushion. So, when a bill is received ftbendeveloper she is not going to Land Use
Board Secretary and telling her to send another letfiéhis is what is happening.

Emery said she is getting a lot of bills from the psefenals. It is not just one or two, she gets
stacks of them. She goes through them, has to put¢berst numbers on them and checks
accounts. Most of the bills coming in she does neé maoney to pay. This is a very difficult
situation, because she has the professional callingsharg for money, the developer on the other
side saying | didn’t get the bill, I don't feel | owedhmoney. Some want documentation.

Emery said the letters were not being sent by Oldfautithe problem was everything just piled
up because of the issues in the Finance Departmente Was a change in Finance and Wayne
Hartman was assisting with escrows and they werengett Oldford and letters were being sent
out. People were not paying, they had professionaisgcalhd now they are playing catch up.
They need to ask for more money up front. The fee and® may need to be changed, they are
not in line.

Elbassiouny asked Oldford why the letters were not@ent She said she has to get advice from

Finance Department that there is not enough monegre™as a period when Finance was in flux

and she wasn't getting any advice from them at alhagdiouny asked if she checked on the issue.
Oldford said she didn't know she was having an issuéjnmpwas being returned to her.

Strunk said there was a procedure that was establisbed &rhe ago which he helped establish
with the Planning Board and may be part of the ordinangart of the procedure that was
followed. The Land Use Secretary was to take catkeoddministration of the escrows. When
they got down to a certain point, the Land Use Boarde$Say was to send out a letter that they
were to be replenished. For some reason, that etadome. Elbassiouny said the procedure
was not followed on both sides, who was supposed to desdnd that. Strunk said the escrow
has always been the responsibility of administerinigraugh the Land Use Board Secretary.

Oldford said, just so it is clear, on how the escrowksnAn applicant comes in with an
application and check. The check passes from her hakds Finance Department. Finance
deposits the money and establishes an account. {heeprofessionals start to bill against it.
According to the Municipal Land

Use Law the professionals send a copy of each hifle@pplicant, so the applicant knows exactly



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 5

how much is being billed toward their escrow. Whatg®ms then, when the bills come in,
Finance takes a look and there is escrow funds to pag dion’'t. They advise her if they don’t
have funds and she sends the applicant a letter sayingaheot do any work, because they don't
have any money. She advises they need to send ounaumf dollars, plus replenish the account
so there is no further disruption of service.

Oldford said there was a point,. which does not retatée current Finance Staff, but there was a
problem with Finance was not communicating the infagiona When she started in November,
the staff in place knew the procedure and gave her thabd she sent a letter and people
typically send money. Then, that staff turned overtarde was different staff that established
procedures, but never did anything. Elbassiouny askdekifter system can be developed
between the two departments.

Strunk said this is the procedure they have gone backu®th® Mayor has strengthened it with
the Monday report being due. Elbassiouny said he haba@ with this, because it is a new
procedure that was put in place, effectively September 27, 200&) has not been approved by
the governing body to make it a mandate yet. So,rteeg to sit back and see how they are
going to look at the whole issue to make sure it is aatieg from one individual. They cannot
set up policies unless the entire committee votes ofhie Mayor said it was an Executive
Authority that he have to run smoothly and he took thitbassiouny said the Mayor has no
more Executive Authority than anyone else. The Mawial no money is being spent, he was
requesting information to be distributed in a way whiduld make sure they are all in alignment.
Elbassiouny said he doesn’t want any procedures to leeatothis Township without the full
boards knowledge and full board vote. The Mayor sai€Ctramittee was copied on it.
Elbassiouny said it was not voted on, they are jushfaliscussion on it.

Strunk said in the vacuum of this new procedure, thetdl isrsold procedure that is still in place
and backed up by an ordinance that is supposed to be fdllowe said he looks at this as a
reassertion of an old procedure that they still hageithestablished. Elbassiouny said that
everything should be put out for the entire committeeote on. Strunk said, in some sense he
would agree, if this wasn’t a reintroduction of an oldgaidure. Elbassiouny said the policy
written should have been a request, not a mandate, gdmmm the entire Committee, not one
individual. Strunk had no problem with the way it watfeed. They knew there was a
problem and something that had been discussed and the,Maygaive direction on what they
were talking about tonight.

The Mayor read, under which was approved, the Secreftéing hand Use Board Job
description, Item 11, responsible for the maintenandteandl Use Escrow Accounts and
performing collection duties when required weekly. T¥as approved by the governing body.

The Mayor said, with regards to his September 27, 2008 meM@shington Township Finance
Department, which would require the Land Use Board Sagrbe given weekly escrow account
balances every Monday by 4:00p.m. Copies were alse tiistributed to the Mayor and Finance
Department Liaison. The Finance Department shadl gicopy of all Land Use Board
Professional bills to the Land Use Board Secretachwis required by State Law. So with
regards to the September 27, 2008 letter, coupled with thelssm@oard Secretary description,
he would like to make a motion that this be adopted adiey by the Washington Township
Committee, Elbassiouny moved the motion, Strunk seconded.

Strunk said he seconded the motion, because he vievesttesiewing it, because it is something
before and establishing it again from his end. iBhexactly what should have been done.

The Mayor said that there is still an outstanding terdeliver a policy to ensure the professional
bills are delivered in a timely format, which mustdukeiressed. Strunk said, in the past, calls were
made to the professionals, but they need to enact@y pwlithis. If they do not submit their bills

on time, they will have trouble getting paid.

ROLL CALL: Elbassiouny, yes; Strunk, yes; Mueller, yegmpski, yes.

The Mayor said an action that needs to be done, washdone when Peg Housman, she did a
review of the escrow policy, which focused on the.fe@&he determined that the fees were not in
line with what reality is in terms of how other Toship handle it. They need to review this from



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 6

an escrow stand point. The Mayor would like to seetb@ance updated for the next meeting

and information should be sent to the Township Attotoeyo. Oldford agreed and said all the

escrows are inadequate. She agreed with the statezgantling escrows made by Emery earlier.
The Mayor told Oldford to have this information sutted by Wednesday, November 12,2008.

Emery said she is looking into a new escrow programmiti®e Municipal Software Program.

She is hoping when it falls below a certain amoumnjlitiag that an amount has to be deposited
into the account. There will be a cost to it, butt @hhances the escrow and helps them to get
money faster and professionals paid in a timely fashiould be worth it. Elbassiouny asked
why, if there is no money, the work is not stoppeddf@d said they have something in place,
that is why they have collected so much lately. a&#imuny asked if there was information to
share with the Code and Construction Office befor®addssued Oldford said, absolutely.
One of the standard conditions and resolutions is thatea are paid. So when the resolution
goes to the Code and Construction Official, beforestigeis a permit, all fees need to be paid first,
or a permit will not be issued. Elbassiouny saidghauld apply to a Temporary CO and CO as
well, all fees must be paid.

Strunk said there is a system already on computer tonlitdlgscrow and he did not feel another
system would be necessary. Oldford said that what \Eséalking about is entirely different.

The new system would watch the money and flag it. Siigsgem in her computer now is merely a
collection letter system.

Strunk said that Oldford should be advising Emery when misrgiye. Oldford asked how

should she be teling Emery.  Strunk said, because pm procedure is that the Land Use
Secretary is in charge of taking the accounting of sleeosvs. Lavery said this is not an issue
that occurs in Washington Township. The Municipal Laisé Uaw says you cannot take any
more action on these applications until you replenisleitrow. The problem is that you have to
give the developer a reasonable time to replenishsitrew. The developed needs adequate time
to do so. The problem is the Land use Board Secrietanys the application may be a seven
hearing application, the CFO has some information la@getmay be some money in the account,
but she does not know how many more hearings therénig gobe. There has to be a sharing of
the information.

Elbassiouny asked if the professionals could give an &stimumber of what they feel the
maximum amount of money would be for an application.vebasaid you can, but people bring in
things at last minute, they revise the plan, sometttiagges, etc., so the estimate given in the
beginning, gives you a basis to ask for the initial@sciother things crop up. Lavery said the
professionals should also know how much is in escromery said once a month the
professions should come into office and go over balangbsher. Strunk said this is a discussion
that should be held with Oldford, she is the one sendihghe letters to replenish the account,
Emery is just writing the check. Elbassiouny saidishaking the deposits as well.

Elbassiouny said Oldford, Emery and Engineer should gethegdtave a meeting once a month
and get a handle on this problem. Oldford said shevbdsed in a municipality where the
engineer met with her on a regular basis, so he kneat wés upcoming and what they
anticipated. Oldford, this comes from the Committerith, because the Township has to pay
for the engineer’s time. Emery said she has alsonitietengineer. The Mayor said the budget
could pay 30 minutes a month for this meeting. Elbasgisai it should be part of the RFP
when it is put out. The Mayor will talk with Land UBagineer regarding this matter.

The Mayor said the Land Use Board Fee increase wilitbeduced at the November meeting,
Emery will review software escrow to see if therasvany efficiency in using it and the Code and
Construction Office will be tied into this to make siris the last safety net to get any fees and
the Mayor will talk with Township Engineer to spend 30ut@s a month with Oldford to
reconcile any escrow balances. He said itemgwifbrward, they will get back on track and
work as a team.

Elbassiouny said on vouchers, make sure they areedigmed by department heads before they
come before the Committee. Emery said if the vousheot signed by the department head and



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 7

the Committee signs off on it, it is not mailed outiluadt signatures are on the voucher.

NEW BUSINESS

1. Senior Citizens Building Ideas for Park & Recreatiaidihg - Strunk said he had
discussed Senior Citizens Recreation at the buildingtwithrepresentatives from the County.
They did a round table discussion on possible seniorcesrand he asked them to attend the
meeting. They would like to see how they could do shegedces or partner through shared
services with senior citizens in the Township. $aaiors could benefit from the use of the
building.

Susan Lennon, Director of the County Division of Agarmgl Scott Burd, Assistant Director were
present at the meeting. Lennon gave a presentatitdreaervices they provide to seniors. She
said they had been discussion on how they could betteidprservices to the senior citizens in
Washington Area. Right now they occupy the Communityt€eat the Assembly of God Church
where they have a multipurpose outreach center.

Lennon said she would like to sit with some people toecamwith real tangible ideas they could
talk about. She said she would like to do a publicized cttireaThere are over 18,000 senior
citizens in Warren County. They have 8000 seniordemn mailing newsletter list. Lennon said
they could use the building as often or as much as theJlogvwould allow them to use it. They
would like a designated time where they could do outreable. wbuld like to have a satellite
office on designated days. They have volunteer tax prepthat help the seniors and they could
have a volunteer at the building doing that. They coulahge for a medicare counselor to be at
the building. She would like to see this be availablthe Washington Area.

Elbassiouny asked Lavery how the insurance on this woolld. Lavery said he will check into
this, but he thought they could probably just get an inseraartificate from the County for the

activities. Elbassiouny said it is not handicapped atddes She said it would be easy to get in
front door or back door.

The Mayor asked what hours they were looking to usedultdiiy. She would like to sit with a

subcommittee and work some things out. Strunk said hedwoumheet with them and another
committeeman like to meet with them to come up witineseonceptual ideas on how they can
utilize the building for seniors and area.

The Mayor said they created a Senior Citizen Advistoynmittee. There was an ordinance to
empower this, but the problems they had no volunteestaftbit. This could be a good focal
point have them work with the County to get the needbeseniors addressed. The Clerk is to
send Lennon a copy of the names collected by theSGalit on the needs of seniors.

Strunk made a motion that Strunk and Horensky work wittnéerio come up with a plan to use
the Park and Recreation Building for seniors, Elbassisengnded.
ROLL CALL: Strunk, yes; Elbassiouny, yes; Mueller, yegmpski, yes.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Mueller had a correction to the September 16, 2008 minuté® minutes show Elbassiouny
approving the minutes and Elbassiosegonding. Mueller is the committeeman that seconded
the minutes of September 16, 2008. Strunk said, on page dJinggdwe motion about buying
furniture. He didn’t remember his motion being that galhéhey were very specific that they
didn’t want any new furniture bought period, unless it canteof operating. He requested this
portion of the minutes be reviewed and done verbatinghat as follows:

Previous paragraph of the Minutes of September 16, 2008 as shown. There was additional
discussion on furniture. Pete had been granted $10,000 lirnitp exceed number, to work with
furniture people regarding steel case furniture, which ban htilized to the best of their ability.
de Boer had sketches on basic furniture for variousesfimd asked they be prioritized. After
further discussion, the three offices to be prioritmene #1, Deputy Clerk, #2 Tax Collector and
#3 Township Clerk. The file Room sketch was for Tasessor, but they will move over the
equipment she has in her office now. There is noth@yeputy's work station will work in her
office, so this must be #1, then he will do whatevecdin other offices. Strunk was in favor of
using existing furniture for any part time employees, effiey had to share it or share office.
Horensky said that de Boer should look at whatever fumituavailable and use his judgement in
furnishing the rooms.




Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 8

Verbatim Minutes of September 16, 2008 M eeting
After lengthy discussion described above, Horensky mawetian on the furniture , Elbassiouny
seconded. Then Strunk asked for clarification on theomot

The Mayor asked for a motion that the Township Conemittill do their best to provide a
minimum operating working environment, based on the ahilitly of money in the BAN and

using existing steel case furniture in the AdministraBaoiiding, if possible. If that is not possible,
if there are objections based on

that, then if there is no money from the operatingeese from that said department, they take
what is given them, based on the availability of fundlbat’s it.  Elbassiouny said, otherwise use
their funds. The Mayor said, if it comes to whereytt@n be given a desk and a chair and some
cabinets, that is what they are going to do. Strunkdasia it be added, they can always come to
the Committee and plead the case, they....Elbassi@aichytey always have an invitation. Strunk
said he was not sure they thought that, so...Elbassgakhyhey have actually told some, one or
two of the people, that they could...Mayor said he digafticularity have a lot of patience for
this and Pete has done way more than he should haveeahdn’t want him to bear the brunt,
because this is a time when he wants to move igdukding, want people to have a desk and
chair, so they can work with their computers and phonést is what he wants, he does not want
to have a big argument, because he will not toleragvén if they would come here, that they
have been given a nice building, it is brand new, anrdadge they did not have in the other
building and they don’'t have a million dollars to go oud &ay furniture for everyone, so, that is
his motion. Elbassiouny said it is one million petdeetter than current conditions they are
working under right now, so, it is what it is. Horenslsked for a call on the motion.

ROLL CALL: Horensky, yes: Elbassiouny, yes; MuelleesyStrunk, yes. Dempski, yes.

The motion was made in the midst of lengthy discussimm Strunk asked for clarification,

which is how | made a mistake and determined Strunk madaakion.

Elbassiouny made a motion to approve the minutes oéByer 16, 2008, requesting paragraph
in question to be done verbatim (which has been provi&d)nk seconded. All were in favor.

Elbassiouny made a motion to approve the ExecutivedeBnutes of September 16,2008,
Mueller seconded. All were in favor.

Mueller made a motion to approve the Work Shop Meetir@avbber 2, 2008, Mueller
seconded. All were in favor except Strunk who abstained.

RESOLUTIONS

The Mayor asked if anyone wanted to remove a resolédiogiscussion. If not, they would all be
passed by Consent Agenda. Strunk made a motion to agpesedution 08-117 through and
including 08-120, Elbassiouny seconded. All were in favbtueller asked that 08-119 be
pulled and voted separately. Strunk amended the motiorssitibay seconded.

Mueller said on Resolution 08-119, if the bank made the,emoy are they not paying it? The
interest is the Township’s, but the bank should paydgh&med check fee. Strunk made a
motion to approve 08-119, Dempski seconded.

ROLL CALL: Strunk, no; Dempski, no; Elbassiouny, no; Ntere no.

Mayor Dempski said, as an add on to Resolution 08-120, typicdhe past, the night before
Halloween the Township would pay for extra police paaral money would come out of the
Clean Community Funds as a way of keeping litter dowmitfie before Halloween. The Mayor
advised Chief Mc Donald that they have done thisenpdst and the funds to pay for this should
come out of the Clean Community Funds. He was advise@hief, because the previous
treasurer for the Township would organize this patrolffusthis purpose and he wanted the
Chief to know about the funding.

REPORTS FROM STAFF
Chief Mc Donaldsaid he submitted the Overtime Paperwork, but on theéhiyaeport, the
person that does them is on vacation.

NEW BUSINESS 9

The Mayor said there will be a whole new dynamic wlit# police department with the stadium.
One of the issues will be parking in Fairway. He saide@ Acres has bought two parcels behind
the Township Property, the railway bed. There is pydshgperty behind the Township Building,




Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 9

so theoretically you could build a path from the Town&ugding to the new stadium and
provide 80 parking spots, plus the grass. There will be paréstgctions in Fairway itself, giving
them additional parking and a path would go a long way. Twetdd also be an emergency
access pad, which would allow the squad to get to theoptdicpad. Chief Mc Donald said this
should be discussed further with the school.

Chief Mc Donald was concerned about people exiting theidybah Building after a game with a
long line of traffic and the officers not being aldeget out in case of an emergency. Elbassiouny
said they should look into having an access road otic€sbn Valley Road. They could build

80+ parking spaces down there.

The Mayor was looking to providing 80 parking places at theidai building on a Friday
night. Other than the police, nobody would be in thé&limg, it will be closed, so the 80 spots
would be available. He felt this was a good compronaisayell as protect Fairway. This is still
in the planning stage.

Pete de BoeRublic Works Manager, said he is not opposed to the ISamsing the building and
the Township accommodating them, but cautioned the Cib@entd slow down the process. The
Recreation Commission has needs, the Youth Assatiéie needs, Environmental Commission
will still be meeting there for balance of year.e bsked the Committee to think the whole thing
through before they make any commitments. Therdlia &t of Land Use Board paperwork and
information at the old Administration Building that nalyoseems to have a grasp on where it is or
should go. He was concerned about climate controhtordécords. One idea he had was, when
the Code and Construction Office is out of the Log Cabitake the Land Use Records and put
them in the Log Cabin. It would be climate controlléiche filing room in new building is getting
jammed already. Some of the records in vault and dawsshould also be in climate controlled
areas.

de Boer advised the Committee to think through the wihig before they do anything. His
department utilizes the garage downstairs and they wouldeet use the space, there would be
fumes, gasoline, etc., which could be a problem. Hetha was a problem when the police were
in the building. He was also out of room and had equipsitimty outside, so he was looking
forward to using some of the space downstairs.

There was a fire at the garage last month and damagemiagal. However, PEOSH came and
gave them an unannounced walk through inspection. Theytdean found negligent in ten areas.
Eight a re considered critical and two are not. Mbisigs can be taken care of right away.

Also, all Township owned buildings, built prior to 1980 thayéto have an asbestos study done
on them.

de Boer asked when the Open House would be done. The Blaygested they have the Open
House an hour before the meeting in November or nieveneeting time. Elbassiouny would

like to see all of the Township Employees, or departrheatls, present to greet the residents and
suggested having it from 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. Elbassiouny anastgion that the Open House
for the new building be November 18, 2008, from 6:00 p.m. to 7100 prior to Township

Meeting, Strunk seconded. The Mayor said the DPW Man&ief Mc Donald and Code and
Construction Office as well as Administrative Stadfgiresent to meet people and show them what
their functions are in the Township. All were inda. The Clerk was to put in newspaper, post
on website and notify employees. Strunk said if ther®t enough money for light refreshments
that he would provide them.

de Boer said ASA would be discussed in Executive Session.

The Mayor asked de Boer to check on any outstandindrbitis Tony's Concrete. He said he
had turned them all over to Finance, but will recheck..

The Mayor asked de Boer about a key to the display tdke feld at Meadow Breeze Field
House, because someone had asked for it. de Boerksg/on it.



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 10

NEW BUSINESS 2

The Mayor said an officer approached him advising thdtadean offer for a donation of a tree
and said it would be great to have a tree lighting cergnmoleadow Breeze Park by the
pavilion. It is simple to apply for a fire pit permitrfa small camp fire. They could advise the
public about the tree lighting ceremony in the park értéxt Storm Water Mailing. The Mayor
said they should just light the tree for the night, n@trg night. Elbassiouny said if they are not
going to have lights on for the season, he is na@vorfof it.

The Mayor suggested Friday, December 12, 2008 and maybe Rayltal had a cherry picker
they could borrow. Elbassiouny suggested the fire deparimssist in trimming tree. The
Mayor asked for a motion to accept the donation ofrdeto be planted in Meadow Breeze Park
at a location determined by the Public Works Managehoaize the Mayor to apply for a camp
fire permit and put out a Storm Water Mailing to advisedents of Open House and Tree
Lighting to be held Friday, December 12, 2008 at 8:00 p.m. irdMedreeze Park.  Strunk
made a motion to approve the recommended motion by dyeibn the tree lighting,
Elbassiouny seconded. All were in favor.  Thes€Céuiggested the tree be planted at the new
Municipal Building. The Mayor asked that the motion beeaded to show that the tree would
be planted at a site suitable at the new Municipal Bgjldio be determined later.  Strunk
amended his motion, Elbassiouny seconded. All weravior f

NEW BUSINESS 8

The Mayor asked about the quotes for the old Police/Maaii@uilding. de Boer said he took
care of this at the last meeting. He was advise@ there three funds this work could be take
from and the quote is under the bid threshold. He olitdhree quotes, filed a permit, but the
final cost be pending what is under the roof. If kgdbigh, de Boer will work with the
contractor on this. The Mayor said the chimneydsde be repointed as well. de Boer said this
is all being taken care of at this time.

NEW BUSINESS 4

The Mayor said, since the Township has a new buildiregQommittee wants to make sure that
work is done in an orderly manner. He asked that thmabment of Public Works Manager be
authorized to develop a Work Order Policy to govern repaioslifications, moving furniture,
installing furniture, various equipment and various othiigthto make sure everything is tracked
and there is accountability of things being repairedutfitted, know where all the wiring and
plumbing is located. Strunk made a motion that Pete de, Bd&*W Manager, develop a Work
Order Policy, with an appropriate request form that wopfuyeto all office space in the new
building, Mueller seconded. The Mayor said that de Bbeuld be the one that signs off on
this, reviewed work orders and signs off on submittingiltefor approval to the Governing
Body. ROLL CALL: Strunk, yes; Mueller, yes; Elbassiguyes; Dempski, yes.

NEW BUSINESS 6

The Mayor asked de Boer about the policy on issuing keyhdéonew building. He said he
thinks the Committee should all have keys to the buildimg Annex Building and upstairs router
closet. He also felt the Mayor should have a ke¢orouter room downstairs. de Boer said,
the policy since he worked here, all key requests have twaugh the Clerk’s Office. He said
the key for the front door can be obtained from trexlCI The Mayor said he felt that the
Mayor should have access to both router closets,nstse there is an emergency situation,
unless the Committee feels otherwise. Elbassioskgdawhat is in the closet besides the
computer system. The Mayor said his concern was@'® dgding down or phone system
needing repair. de Boer said there are two IT Rotmasyne upstairs controls all networking
and phone system for upstairs. The IT Room downstagshe entire downstairs of the Police
Department, telephone system, swipe cards system gualiedl networking. The Mayor wants
access to both router rooms. Elbassiouny said hiesttiie Township Clerk should have access,
because the next Mayor may not have the computer kdge/léo do anything with the system
anyway. He said the Clerk should have access totairggyand a someone from the Police
Department should have it as well. Chief Mc Ddrsalid, on the downstairs, he preferred two
representatives or each supervisor from the Poliee decess to downstairs. On the router
room downstairs, Chief Mc Donald said the only one tiag access is Lt. Cicerelle, because of
the security. The Mayor made a motion that the TowprSlerk will be responsible for the front
door and annex building keys, that each supervisor indlieeFDepartment will have access to




Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 11

the downstairs router room closet, with key, and wilfésponsible for providing access in the
event of an emergency and the Governing Body Membergieen a copy of front door and
annex keys, which will be part of the policy, sign oartdcto say who has what key and what
serial number on the key, and Code and Construction amddgshould be included to be the
responsibility of Township Clerk, except for the rout@om downstairs and the Clerk should also
have a key to the router room upstairs key as well, alice@upervisors will have for key to
router rooms upstairs and downstairs, Elbassiouny seconded.

ROLL CALL: Dempski, yes; Elbassiouny, yes; Mueller,;y88unk, yes.

Strunk felt that the downstairs entrance door shoulthéeldor that all employees enter and exit.
The Mayor said his card did not work, so he needed the &e, it will be necessary to provide
keys to the front door.

The Mayor asked about the telephone. de Boer said theie#e the drop down date of the
new phones. The Mayor asked de Boer to discuss commeneatth Lavery, because it is
unacceptable that the Township has been out over awieko service. The Township should
get compensated for not having service, even if itaisunt of months or free service. de Boer
will call the company about this. Strunk this compaag been terrible from the beginning. The
Mayor agreed they have done a lousy job with the telepbervice. The Mayor wanted a letter
written by Lavery expressing the concerns of the Tshynon the poor performance of this
company. de Boer asked the letter be held until the 24

de Boer said at the last Work Shop Meeting, the catraleat installed the swipe cards was
present. They had gotten a price from the contraotput two swipe readers on the outside
door and Code and Construction door for $7800. de Boer wekiaba renegotiated with the
contractor and got a new price for a number not toeek&5000. This would include putting a
pass through buzzer in the Police Secretary’s officloav her to open the door as well.
Elbassiouny made a motion to have a swipe system piliednont and side door, pending
availability of funds, Dempski seconded.

ROLL CALL: Elbassiouny, yes; Dempski, yes; Mueller, &brunk, no.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND CONCERNS

Frank Cregan62 Merlin Drive, said he was concerned about thesat#ion of Broad Street and
Route 31. He noticed when you pull up to the stop sign, comih@f town, you cannot see what
is coming South. The reason is you cannot see is #rertwo parking spots in front of
Washington Lock Doctor and Shell Station and wherethee cars you cannot see and when
there are trucks there it is impossible to see atHdl.thinks there is a line of sight problem and
the parking spots are not used by Washington Lock Smitliheushell

Station and Oxford Tire. You cannot see when you pulbupé stop sign and there is definitely
a sight problem. Lt. Cicerelle will check into theqjuest by Cregan. Cregan said it would be
eliminated if there was no parking in the two spots.

George Willan 32 Falcon Way, thanked the Township Committee, onlfoefhize residents, for
all their hard work. They have made a lot of progvatis Pinnacle and they hope it continues.

Efrem Zaret, 37 Falcon Way, asked if the Mayor couldeshdiom Quinn’s latest report, where
he lists suggestion and costs. The Mayor did not getdiate yet. The number, which
greatly exceeded what is available in the cash pootithe bond. There has been inflation and
most costs on doing it.

Public Portion ended.....

NEW BUSINESS 10

There was a proposal received to create an Office §ar@osition, which is something that was
done in Blairstown. The Mayor said there should badministrative head at the Municipal
Building in terms of making sure action items are fodovwup and done. The Committee was
looking into creating this position, part time, and eually full time. A sample ordinance was in
packet to be reviewed by Committee. They could enacbittinance, but not necessarily hire




Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 12

anyone this year. The Mayor said Mansfield had a BbypnAdministrator for several years, but
this person left and the position was never filled. videild like to see an Ac ting Office Manager
before they decide whether to have someone part tirfudl ime, find out if it fits in with current
set up, will it work and what are the costs associat#ditv Review it after a year and find out
whether it worked or not. Elbassiouny said he suppat tlhie said the best way to do this is
through an outside firm that would seek someone. Theugtbrbas done this with their current
manager and are very happy with the way it worked. Hddnixe to see the firm start a search
in January, not for an individual, but an outside firnndach out for someone.

NEW BUSINESS
7. Strunk made a motion to approve the Clerk attending &8@ssinty Municipal Clerks
Seminar on October 24, 2008, Elbassiouny seconded. Adliwéavor.

NEW BUSINESS

11. The Mayor said another item to be reviewed wapdhieing at Fairway during sports.

The Committee will be putting an ordinance in place twiwould restrict parking, during sports
activities, so there is no overflow into FairwayThis will be introduced at the November meeting
for first reading.

NEW BUSINESS 3

The Mayor said, the Township did want to do a snow reinayreement to plan for worst case.
The Township Attorney drafted an agreement betweemdhaship and Hawk Pointe
Association to enable the Township to plow majoretgeluring a snow storm. Lavery read the
agreement, which basically said the snow will be needcand that Hawk Pointe would indemnify
the Township if anything should happen. He said the Bbiprhas no responsibility to go there
and plow the roads, no legal responsibility, plus the Bbwpnhas a problem with their insurance
carrier by sending trucks in on roads they do not owWhe motion was made at the last meeting
this would be done, if the Township was indemnified ammdishprovide an insurance certificate as
well. Lavery said, for the Township to have theircks go on private roadways, they have to
have protection and the agreement indemnifies it.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Liz Scovill, 5 Osprey Court said the Mayor had asked the Condo Ownédfsstrow and Osprey
to have the former attorney write to the TownshifpAtey advising about the situation on
Osprey and Kestrow and hoping they came under th NJ Conidomtservice Act, where is that
at this point? The Mayor said, right now, when thlewv the Fairway Condo Association on
Mine Hill, they give them money because the Townshigsdwt plow the streets under this act.
The Mayor said they would do the same thing for Hawk teance the roads are accepted. She
said they are privately owned by the Condo Ownerse s@hl if the DPW would plow them out,
they would gladly indemnify the Township. The Mayor saddid not know if the Condo Town
Homes would be wide enough for the public standard. Laaedyhe will talk with their attorney,
because there should be a Municipal Service Agreemeitdda with regard to snow plowing.
Lavery said, under the Municipal Service Agreement tlagypay the Condo Association if they
hire a third party contractor to plow streets or tlegviship can agree to do it. The question
becomes, are the streets wide enough to be plowed. ates&d he will have Tom Quinn,
Engineer check it out.

The Mayor said, normally the street lights would beaaneter, because they don’t need to be.
They tied the street lights, irrigation system and iothiags to the same common box. It is not
wise to rip up roads and redo it all. Normally the Tdwmsvould be paying, as part of the master
bill for street lights. They need to develop a forntolanake sure the Township reimburses on
this. The Township needs to pay for the public lightseh There was discussion on the
sidewalks and driveway aprons at Hawk Pointe. The Majbfollow up with Quinn to check

on sideways and driveway aprons.

Elbassiouny said he talked with Lavery about the wooditgistoves that people are looking to
install. He said there has been issues on them ardEPR is trying to shut them down.



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 13

Recommendations have been made on properly insta)l#tipgoes outdoors it has to have a
chimney that is at least two foot higher than thedao Therefore, the smoke would not go to
your neighbor. It also has to be 300' from anothedeesi Strunk asked where these rules were
coming from. Elbassiouny said they called the manufacsuwf the wood burning stoves. He said
there are problems in other counties and he would lilse¢oNarren County take the lead on this.
He was asking Lavery to prepare an ordinance on thitdonext meeting, because they do not
belong in every neighborhood. He asked anybody to nesdcemmendations to Lavery on this as
well.

Elbassiouny said he talked with White Township regardiegdhde and Construction Office.
There was an issue of possible conflict of inteftestause elected officials could not use their own
Code and Construction Offices. He had talked with M&am Race of White Township and
they would be more than willing to enter into a Sh&8edvice Agreement, strictly for the purpose
of elected officials on both sides. Elbassiouny daxbuld be a courtesy. Strunk asked where
the money would go. Elbassiouny said whatever thesfd®at is what is paid. Lavery suggested
a resolution be passed on this. Elbassiouny suggestddatraty call White Township attorney
Brian Tipton and work this out and a resolution be passadudure meeting. Elbassiouny made
a motion to authorize Lavery to prepare a resoluti@hsamd to White Township so they can do
at next meeting, Dempski seconded.

Strunk said he was going to abstain from his mattegussche may have been the one this
process started with and he feels uncomfortable on eoimg or voting on this.

ROLL CALL: Elbassiouny, yes; Dempski, yes; Mueller, ;y8gunk, abstain.

Elbassiouny made a motion to approve Resolution 08-121 tat@&xecutive Session at 11:45
p.m. to discussion a contractional matter and potduigation, Strunk seconded. All were in
favor.

The doors were opened. Strunk made a motion to comd &ueoutive Session at 12:30 p.m. .,
Elbassiouny seconded. All were in favor.

Lavery said the Committee emerged from Executive Sess$i@2:30 a.m. where they discussed
one attorney/client privilege contractional poteriiiglation matter involving the architect’s bills.
No official action was taken. Copies of these minutdide available at such time the Committee
determines there is no harm to the public interest.

Strunk made a motion to authorize Elbassiouny to emtemiegotiations with the architect to
review final fee payment, Mueller seconded. All war&avor.

NEW BUSINESS

Lavery said he received a letter from the son obthieer of the restaurant, Star 31 Route, which
was the Grapevine. They are asking the Committegiader changing the license. When it was
approved for 2008-2009, it had conditions put on it. They aragaghe Committee to change the
conditions. Lavery said he was not sure legally ther&hip could even do this, because ABC
issued the license for a year, based on the conditid@lisassiouny left the meeting and this time
and was not part of the discussion. There were alssiatements made in the letter regarding
who the owner of the license was. Lavery said Al&S the one that put conditions on the
license. Strunk said also that the Chief should bdvadan this. Lavery will send a copy of
letter to Chief Mc Donald for his input, to be discusaethe next meeting.

PAYMENT OF BILLS

Strunk made a motion to pay the bills, Mueller seconded.

ROLL CALL: Strunk, yes to the bills he signed; Muellges; Elbassiouny, yes for the ones he
signed; Dempski, for the ones he signed.

Elbassiouny asked the status of the old building, hassangldate been set. Lavery said they set
up a closing date, but the problem is that the contegst they have x amount of days from the
date of the sale of the property to closing, or whey tet their Land Use approvals. There s an
objector who has filed a brief with the Land Use Bijaointing out certain objections. Lavery
said they may end up with the same situation as A&R;hwikicompetition, will try to slow them
down. They have already missed their 45 days. Strunkl askiie sale of that property is tied

in with them getting their approvals, Lavery said yEtbassiouny said as long as they are getting
approvals, whatever someone is suing them for, shoug&lathing to do with the Township.
Lavery said that is what the contract states. Straitk § they don’t get their approvals and it



Washington Township Regular Minutes
October 21, 2008
Page 14

takes three years, the Township cannot close. Lawérgheck the contract to see if they have a
certain period and the specific wording.

ADJOURNMENT
There being nothing further to come before the CoramitStrunk made a motion to adjourn at
12:45 a.m., Elbassiouny seconded. All were in favor.

Respectfully,

Mary Ann O’Neil RMC/CMC/MMC
Township Clerk



